
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAXI LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday 21 November 2024 

10.00 am 

Council House 

 

Members: 

Councillor Tippetts, Chair 

Councillor Moore, Vice Chair 

Councillors Gilmour, Lugger, Morton, Ney and S.Nicholson. 

 

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 

 

For further information on webcasting, attending Council meetings and how to engage in the 

democratic process please follow this link - Get Involved 
 

Tracey Lee 

Chief Executive 
 

 

Oversight and Governance 

Chief Executive’s Department 

Plymouth City Council 

Ballard House 

Plymouth  PL1 3BJ 

 

Please ask for  Rosie Brookshaw 

T 01752 305155 

E democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk 

www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

Published 14/11/24 

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/get-involved
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/


 

Taxi Licensing Committee 
 
 

1. Apologies    

  

 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Committee Members. 

  

2. Declarations of Interest    

  

 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda.  

  

3. Minutes   (Pages 1 - 4) 

  

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 3 October 2024.  

  

4. Chair's Urgent Business    

  

 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 

  

5. Appeal Cases    

  

 The Committee will be provided with the results of the judgement on appeal cases that 

went to Court.  

  

6. Number of Certificates of Good Conduct Exemptions 

Granted   

 

  

 The Committee will be provided with the Number of Certificates of Good Conduct 

Exemptions Granted. 

  

7. Application for the Grant of a Private Hire Vehicle Operator 

Licence:   

(Pages 5 - 20) 

 

8. Application for the Grant of a Private Hire Vehicle Operator 

Licence:   

(Pages 21 - 34) 

 

9. Exempt Information    

  

 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 

1972 to exclude the press and the public from the meeting for the following items of 

business, on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information, as 

defined in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by the Freedom 

of Information Act 2000. 

  

Part II (Private Meeting) 

 



 

Agenda 

 

Members of the Public to Note: 

 

That under the law, the Committee is entitled to consider certain items in private. Member of 

the public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed. 

 

10. Confidential Minutes   (Pages 35 - 42) 

  

 To confirm the confidential minutes of the meeting held on 3 October 2024.  

  

11. Review Status of a Private Hire Vehicle Driver Licence, 

Private Hire Vehicle Licence and Operators Licence:   

(Pages 43 - 64) 

 

12. Review Status of a Hackney Carriage Vehicle Driver Licence:   (Pages 65 - 78) 
 

13. Review status of Hackney Carriage Driver and Vehicle 

Licence:   

(Pages 79 - 

100) 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Taxi Licensing Committee Thursday 3 October 2024 

Taxi Licensing Committee 
 

Thursday 3 October 2024 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Councillor Tippetts, in the Chair. 

Councillor Moore, Vice Chair. 

Councillors Gilmour, Holloway, Lugger, Ney and S.Nicholson. 

 

Apologies for absence: Councillors Moore and Morton. 

 

Also in attendance: Michele Battershill (Lawyer), Hannah Chandler-Whiting (Democratic 

Advisor), Steve Forshaw (Senior Enforcement Officer), Graham Hooper (Senior Intelligence and 

Licensing Officer) and Mark Wheeler (Enforcement Officer). 

 

The meeting started at 10.03 am and finished at 1.01 pm. 

 

Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may 

be subject to change.  Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have 

been amended. 

 

31. Declarations of Interest   

 

No declarations of interest were made. 

 

32. Minutes   

 

The Committee agreed the minutes of the meeting held on 5 September 2024 as an accurate 

record.  
 

33. Chair's Urgent Business   

 

There were no items of Chair’s urgent business.  

 

34. Appeal Cases   

 

There were no updates on appeal cases. 

 

35. Number of Certificates of Good Conduct Exemptions Granted   

 

There had not been any certificates of good conduct exemptions granted. 

 

36. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licence Fees   

 

Graham Hooper (Senior Intelligence and Licensing Officer) introduced the report and 

highlighted: 

 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



 

Taxi Licensing Committee Thursday 3 October 2024 

a) Plymouth City Council regulated the Hackney Carriage (HC) and Private Hire (PH) 

industry through the licensing framework set out in the Plymouth City Council Act 

1975; 

 

b) The cost of the licensing system could be divided into the processing of individual 

applications and the general administration and compliance monitoring of the system; 

 

c) There was a mistake contained within the report in Section 4.5, point 3, and the 

percentages of complaints were listed as 29% of the HC drivers compared to 71% of 

the PH drivers but it should have read 56% of the HC drivers compared to 44% of 

the PH drivers. This correction did not affect any cost calculations; 

 

d) The reduction in the number of Hackney Carriage licences, a national trend, had 

changed the ratio to Private Hire to: Hackney Carriage 24% and Private Hire 76%; 

 
e) A review of the fee structure and levels was last undertaken on 02 March 2023 and 

the fees had not been increased since April 2020; 

 

f) The predicted income and expenditure for the year had been reviewed and the 

reserve accounts were in a surplus position, and it was proposed that there is no 

increase in fee to the Licence fees for 2024/25; 

 

g) It was not recommended to reduce the fees for 2024/2025 due to economic 

uncertainty and resultant rise in costs to deliver the Taxi Licensing Service, for 

example 13% rise in associated consumables (vehicle plates/badges etc) and to fund 

service improvements including IT and digital development; 

 

h) The report was being presented later than usual to Committee for operational 

reasons; 

 

i) The intention was to review the licensing fees again in February 2025 to bring 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licence Fees in line with other Council fees and 

charges reviews. 

 

The Committee agreed: 

 

1. That the fees would remain the same and not have any changes for the financial year 

2024/25. 

 

37. Exempt Information   

 

The Committee agreed to pass a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local 

Government Act, 1972 to exclude the press and the public from the meeting for the 

following items of business, on the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt 

information, as defined in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by 
the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

 

38. Confidential Minutes   

 

Page 2



 

Taxi Licensing Committee Thursday 3 October 2024 

The Committee agreed the confidential minutes of the meeting held on 5 September 2024 as 

an accurate record. 

 

39. Application for the Grant of a Private Hire Vehicle Driver Licence   

 

The Committee:  

 

a) Considered all that was said by the driver; 

 

b) Considered all of the information contained within the report;  

 

c) Considered all of the relevant policies referred to in the report;  

 

d) Asked itself whether it would want a person they cared for or a vulnerable person to 

be driven in a vehicle driven by the driver, the answer to that questions was yes; 
 

e) Found exceptional, clear and compelling reasons to depart from the Council’s 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Policy guidelines. 

 

The Committee agreed to: 

 

1. Grant the application for a Private Hire Vehicle Licence, subject to the driver 

completing the VRQ in “Transporting Passengers by Taxi and Private Hire” or its 

equivalent within 12 months of receiving the licence. Failure to complete the course 

by this time could result in sanctions including the possible revocation of their 

licence. 

 

(At the conclusion of this item, the Committee adjourned from 11.23 am until 11.31 am). 

 

40. Application for the Grant of a Private Hire Vehicle Driver Licence   

 

The Committee:  

 

a) Considered all that was said and provided by the driver; 

 

b) Considered all of the information contained within the report;  

 

c) Considered all of the relevant policies referred to in the report;  

 

d) Asked itself whether it would want a person they cared for or a vulnerable person to 

be driven in a vehicle driven by the driver, the answer to that questions was yes. 

 

The Committee agreed to: 

 

1. Grant the application for a Private Hire Vehicle Licence, subject to the driver 
completing the VRQ in “Transporting Passengers by Taxi and Private Hire” or its 

equivalent within 12 months of receiving the licence. Failure to complete the course 

by this time could result in sanctions including the possible revocation of their 

licence. 

 

Page 3



 

Taxi Licensing Committee Thursday 3 October 2024 

41. Review Status of a Hackney Carriage Vehicle Driver Licence   

 

The Committee: 

 

a) Considered the statement provided by the driver; 

 

b) Considered all of the information contained within the report; 

 

c) Considered all of the relevant policies referred to in the report. 

 

The Committee agreed to: 

 

1. Dismiss the appeal and the penalty points would remain from the date of issue; 

 

2. The driver would be required to undertake the Safeguarding Training within 6 
months. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4



 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

Taxi Licensing Committee
 

 

 

Date of meeting: 21 November 2024 

Title of Report: Application for the Grant of a Private Hire Vehicle Operator 

Licence 

Lead Member:   Councillor Sally Haydon (Cabinet Member for Community Safety, 

Libraries, Events, Cemeteries & Crematoria) 

Lead Strategic Director: Ruth Harrell (Director of Public Health) 

Author: Nicola Horne 

Contact Email:  nicola.horne@plymouth.gov.uk 

Your Reference: PHO2024/ TL/ NH 

Key Decision:  No 

Confidentiality: Part I - Official 

   

Purpose of Report 

For Members of the Committee to consider the application for the grant of a Private Hire Vehicle 

Operators licence made by Uber Brittania Limited having due regard for the information contained 

within the report, any representations made by the company and the Plymouth City Council Act 1975, 

Plymouth City Council Act 1975 (legislation.gov.uk), and the Council’s Hackney Carriage and Private 

Hire Licensing Policy 2022 (as amended 2024). Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy | 

PLYMOUTH.GOV.UK 

 

 

Recommendations and Reasons 

That Members consider the report and representations to determine whether or not Uber Brittania 

Limited is a fit and proper person to be granted a Private Hire Vehicle Operator licence and if a licence 

is to be issued, to decide on the appropriate length of the licence and any reasonably necessary 

conditions. 
 

 

 

Alternative options considered and rejected 

None 

 

 

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan   

Keeping children, adults and communities safe- by ensuring that we provide a safe taxi licensing system 

to the wider community of Plymouth.  

 

 

Implications for the Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     

None 

 

Page 5 Agenda Item 7

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukla/1975/20/enacted
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/hackney-carriage-and-private-hire-licensing-policy
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/hackney-carriage-and-private-hire-licensing-policy


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

Financial Risks  

None 

 

 

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:  

Not applicable   

 

Other Implications: e.g. Health and Safety, Risk Management, Child Poverty: 
* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the Council’s duty to promote 

equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations between people who share protected 

characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not. 

Members should be aware that Section 17 of the Crime Disorder Act 1998 placed a statutory duty on 

every Local Authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the need to do all that it 

reasonably can do to prevent crime and disorder in its area. 

 

 

Appendices  
*Add rows as required to box below 
 

Ref. Title of Appendix Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)  
If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate  

why it is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A  

of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.   

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

A Briefing report title        

 

Background papers:  

*Add rows as required to box below 

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background papers are unpublished works, 

relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

work is based. 

Title of any background 

paper(s) 

Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable) 

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it is not for 

publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

by ticking the relevant box.   

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

Uber Britannia Ltd Application – 

April 2024 

X- personal 

information 

concerning the 

directors. 

      

        

   

Sign off: 
 

Page 6



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

Fin 

 

HS.2
4.25.
25 

LegI 

 

IW-

05.11.

24-

3061 

Mon 

Off 

Click 

here 

to 

enter 

text. 

HR Click 

here 

to 

enter 

text. 

Asset

s  

Click 

here 

to 

enter 

text. 

Strat 

Proc 

Click here 

to enter 

text. 

Originating Senior Leadership Team member:  Ruth Harrell 

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report?  Yes  

Date agreed: 05/11/2024 

 

Cabinet Member approval:  Councillor Sally Haydon approved by e-mail. 

Date approved: 05/11/2024 
 

 

 

 

 

Report 

 
FACTS 

 

1. Plymouth City Council is responsible for the issuing of Private Hire Vehicle Operators licences 

where they are satisfied that the applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a licence for a 

period of up to 5 years. (section 13 (1) and section 13 (2) respectively Plymouth City Council 

Act 1975).  The Council can attach conditions to the licence where it is considered reasonably 

necessary (section 13(3) Plymouth City Council Act 1975). 

 

2. The holder of a Private Hire Vehicle Operators licence is in effect, a contracting party with 

customers for the supply of a private hire vehicle and driver to undertake a journey, pre-

booked with that operator. The ‘Operator’ is responsible for, amongst other things, keeping 

accurate records of bookings received and the drivers and vehicles used to complete each 

booking and ensuring that all conditions attached to the licence are complied with. (Chapter 4 

para 4.1 of the Taxi Policy) 

 

3. On 12 April 2024, Uber Britannia Limited made an application for the grant of a private hire vehicle 

operator licence for 5 years, with the intention of having a fleet of 160 vehicles licenced per year. 

(Appendix A) 

 

4. As part of the application process several procedural checks were carried out to enable a decision 

to be made about whether the applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a licence. This included:- 

 

a. a Basic Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) certificate was completed and checked for 

the two nominated Directors for the Plymouth operations, which revealed that there 

were no convictions. 

b. Companies House checked for Plymouth office. 

c. HMRC check. 

d. Applicants had lived in the UK for the last 10 years 

e. Operators completed relevant Safeguarding courses on 05/08/24 and 10/09/24.  

 
5. All elements of the procedural and documentation check have been completed satisfactorily.  

 

6. Uber Brittania Ltd is a nationwide company and has outlined in its application form where any 

Page 7



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

other application have been refused or revoked nationally and the results of appeals to the courts. 

 

DECISION TO BE MADE 

7. In light of the information contained within the application form and report, the committee is being 

asked to consider: 

a. whether the two named Directors of Uber Britannia Limited can be considered a fit and 

proper person and  

b. if Uber Britannia Ltd is granted a licence, the appropriate length of time the licence should 

be granted for, up to a maximum of 5 years and 
c. whether the Committee consider that any conditions should be imposed on the licence. 

 

CONSIDERATIONS 

 

8. Committee members must have regard to the Plymouth City Council Act 1975 and the Hackney 

Carriage and Private Hire Taxi Licensing Policy 2022 (as amended 2024), (referred to as the Policy) 

when deciding if the operator can be considered as a fit and proper person.  

 

9. Officers recognise that if this application is granted it will potentially affect other private hire 

operators in the city- the committee is reminded that this is not a factor to be considered when 

deciding the application. 

 

Fit and Proper person test 

 

10. The ‘fit and proper person’ test will be applied to each of the Directors or partners in that company 

or partnership. 

 

11. There is no statutory or judicial test whether an applicant is a fit and proper person to be granted 

a private hire operators licence. To assist the committee, James Button in “Button on Taxi’s” 

submits it is reasonable for this variation of the test recommended for assessing whether an 

operator is a fit and proper person: 

 

“Would I be comfortable providing sensitive information such as holiday or business plans, 

movements of my family or other personal information to this person and feel safe in the 

knowledge that such information would not be used or passed on for criminal or unacceptable 

purposes?” 

 

This is a decision for the committee after considering the report and any representation.  

 

 
12. There are several aspects to the policy that are pertinent to this application, based on the nature 

of the business model being app based. 

 

13. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy Issues 

 

In Chapter 4 section 8.1, the policy states that ‘The Council will not grant a private hire operator’s licence 

to any person for an address OR base of operations that is located outside the Plymouth City Council 

area’.  

Uber Britannia have stated in their application form that they have a local office situated within 

the boundary of Plymouth City Council where bookings are received. The office is not a public 

office. This address is listed as 4th Floor, Salt Quay House, 6 North East Quay, Sutton Harbour, 

Plymouth, Devon, PL4 0HP, United Kingdom, and has been confirmed on Companies House 

records.  

Page 8

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/hackney-carriage-and-private-hire-licensing-policy


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Uber have confirmed that their own staff will be able to access and print records from this office 

if required, by appointment, however there is a 24-hour compliance team available by telephone 

who can access digital records at any time of day/night if required, located outside of Plymouth.  

The current policy says in section 6.1 that electronic records are acceptable. 

In relation to a base of operations, Uber Brittania Ltd have specified in their application that they 

will control bookings through a server and cloud-based app and the server is not located within 

Plymouth. However, the policy only requires a local office OR base of operations, so this meets 

the requirements of policy. 

 

14. Conditions of Private Hire Operators 

The Policy outlines the conditions which should be incorporated into the licence. 

 

In relation to ‘Conditions of Licence for Private Hire Operators’, these standard conditions are 

applied to all operators. There are two conditions, that are important to consider. 

The operator must allow access to the premises at all reasonable times during business hours to any 

officer authorised by the Council or police officer, for the furtherance of his duties or for the purposes of 

inspection and/or enforcement. All such records as aforementioned must be made available for inspection 

without hindrance to the authorised officer or police officer upon demand. Para 6.4. 

 

In relation to the access to view records, Uber Britannia have confirmed they have a 24-hour 

compliance telephone line that can provide digital copies of all records, but have advised that face 

to face meetings can be held at the local office by appointment only. 

 

The operator will hold any property left within any hired licensed vehicle as provided by any licensed driver 

for safekeeping. A record of each item should record in writing, which should be available for inspection by 

any person authorised by the Council. The operator must have a documented disposal policy which must 

be approved by the Council. 

 

Uber have clarified by e-mail their compliance with the lost property requirements whereby in the 

first instance they encourage drivers and riders to communicate through the app to arrange 

collection of the lost item. Failing this, drivers will be able to return the lost item to the Plymouth 

office where it will be securely held. Details of the item will be made in a digital log and will be 

available for inspection by any person authorised by the Council. The rider will be asked to come 

and collect the item. In the situation where a rider cannot collect the item they can post the item 

back to the rider. They have provided the following link to demonstrate and stated that Uber dealt 

with 25 million lost items globally in 2023. Link here  

 

 
Committee may want to consider any other conditions it may want to impose, should the 

Committee decide to grant an Operator’s licence.  

 

15. Licence Period 

 

The final point for consideration is the length of licence. The law states that a licence can be granted 

for up to 5 years maximum. Uber Britannia have applied for a 5-year licence, however the licence 

may be granted for any period of between 1 year and 5 years. 

 

Page 9

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/conditions-licence-private-hire-operator
https://help.uber.com/en-GB/riders/article/contact-driver-about-a-lost-item?nodeId=53539bde-f6f4-4909-85de-fa0b99f82be0


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

Under the Department for Transports Statutory taxi and private hire vehicle standards (updated 

November 2022) section 3.2, it states that:  

  

The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 (as amended) (LGMP 1976) sets a 

standard length at 3 years for taxi and private hire vehicle drivers and 5 years for private hire 

vehicle operators. 

 

“Any shorter duration licence should only be issued when the licensing authority thinks it is 

appropriate in the specific circumstances of the case. If a licensee has requested one or where 
required (for example, when the licence holder’s leave to remain in the UK is time-limited) or 

when the licence is only required to meet a short-term demand – they should not be issued on 

a probationary basis.” 

 

While Plymouth City Council licences Operators under the Plymouth City Council Act 1975, and 

not the LGMP 1976, the Department for Transport standards need to be considered. 

 

  

 

LAW AND POLICY 

 

16. The following law is relevant to the matters being considered in this report: 

Plymouth City Council Act 1975 Requirements 

Section 13(1)  
The Council shall not grant a licence to 

operate Private Hire vehicles to an applicant, 

unless they are satisfied that the applicant is a 

‘fit and proper’ person to hold such a licence. 

Section 13 (3) 
Provides for the Council to attach to the grant 

of such a licence such conditions as the Council 

may consider necessary. 

Section 14 
Every contract for the hire of a private hire 

vehicle shall be deemed to be made with the 

operator, and the operator shall keep records 

as specified by conditions 

Section 15 (1) 
The Council may require any applicant for a 

licence under the Act of 1847 or under this Act 

to submit to the Council such information as 

they may reasonably consider necessary to 

enable them to determine whether the licence 

should be granted and whether conditions 

should be attached to any such licence,  

 

Section 15(2)(b)(iii) 
The Council can require an applicant to 

submit information relating to (amongst 

other things) any trade or business activities 

he has carried on before making the 

application, to enable them to determine 

whether to grant a licence. 

 

 

 POLICY (relevant sections only) 

 

Page 10

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards#private-hire-vehicle-operator-licensing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards#private-hire-vehicle-operator-licensing


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

17. In reaching their decision, Members must have regard to the Council’s Hackney Carriage and 

Private Hire Licensing Policy 2022 (as amended 2024). The relevant parts of the Council’s policy 

are detailed/summarised below.  

 

Chapter 1 Statement of Policy  

3.1 The policy will provide a framework that will assist in delivering a safe, regulated 

hackney carriage and private hire licensed trade. The Council, in adopting this policy 

recognises both the needs of residents and visitors to expect a safe, healthy, 

convenient and effective hackney carriage and private hire transport service. 

3.2 The Council has adopted byelaws, conditions of licence and vehicle specifications 

and any other standards considered appropriate to regulate the hackney carriage 

and private hire trades for the benefit of all concerned within the City of Plymouth. 

3.3 The Council in its decision making will consider each case on its own merits, having 

regard to the requirements of this policy, any relevant specific policy documents, 

national best practice guidelines and any other information considered relevant 

4.6 In determining any matter in respect of a licence, the overriding principle adopted 

by the Council will be that each matter will be determined on its own merits. 

 

8.1 In exercising its discretion in carrying out its regulatory functions in respect to taxi 

licensing, the Council will have regard to its relevant policy documents. 

Notwithstanding the content of this policy, each matter will be considered on its 

own merits, but where there are clear and compelling reasons, the Taxi Licensing 

Committee may, having regard to all available information, authorise a departure 

from its policy documents. 

 

Chapter 4 Private Hire Operators 

1.1 Any person who operates a private hire service must apply to the Council for a    

private hire operator’s licence and comply with the Council’s conditions of licence. 

1.2 All applications for a grant or renewal of a private hire operator’s licence will be 

determined to ensure the applicant is ‘fit and proper’ to hold a licence and also 

having regard to any previous business activities performed by the applicant. The 

operator must declare all companies that operate under the umbrella of the 

operator’s licence as this information will be displayed on the licence. Where the 

applicant is a limited company, a named individual(s) must be stated for inclusion in 

the licence.  

 

1.4 Applications for an operator’s licence can be made as an individual, as a partnership 

of individuals, or as a limited company. All of the individuals/directors etc. involved 

in the company must be listed on the application form. The ‘fit and proper’ test will 

be applied to each of the directors or partners in that company or partnership. 

 

1.5 When determining an application or when reviewing a licence, the Council will 

apply the following test to ensure consistent and informed decisions are made: 

‘Would I be comfortable allowing this person to have control of a business that 

knows where any licensed vehicle is travelling, at any time of day or night and be 

satisfied that he/she would not allow the business to be used for criminal or other 

unacceptable purposes and be confident that he/she would maintain their records 

to an acceptable standard throughout the period of the licence?’. 

 

1.6 The Council will issue a licence for a period of up to 5 years. 

4.1 The Council requires operators to keep records of each booking. Information must 

include:  

Page 11



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

o Date and time when the booking was made  

o Name of the lead passenger  

o Pick up point and the time of the pick-up  

o Destination  

o Name of the driver, the licence number of the vehicle and route  

 

The records must be in an approved electronic format unless otherwise agreed by 

the Council. Factors to be considered in deciding whether an operator does not 

have to comply with this requirement are size of business, number of vehicles 

operated, compliance and cost effectiveness.  

 

4.2 The operator must hold records of insurance and licence expiry dates of drivers 

and vehicles. No journeys must be allocated to uninsured or unlicensed drivers and 

vehicles.  

 

5.1 Before an application for, or renewal of, a private hire operator’s licence is granted, 

the  applicant must produce evidence that they have the appropriate public liability 

insurance. The Council’s standard level of expected cover is £5M. Where 

necessary, evidence of suitable employer liability insurance will be required.  

 

5.2 All operators must have suitable insurance in place indemnifying the operator 

against any third party claim made against the operator arising as a result of the use 

of a vehicle operated by virtue of their operator’s licence. 

8.1 Operators Offices Located Outside the Plymouth Licensing Area  

The Council will not grant a private hire operator’s licence to any person for an 

address or base of operations that is located outside the Plymouth City Council 

area. 

 

 

OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION 

         

10.  The Taxi Licensing Section also provides ‘Application Guidance Notes’ for those seeking to be 

licensed as Private Hire Vehicle Operators, and the relevant areas of that guidance are provided below. 

Private Hire Operator - Application guidance notes | PLYMOUTH.GOV.UK The section numbers 

relate to the relevant section of the application form – a copy of which is produced at Appendix A: 

 Application Guidance Notes 

Section 2 Operating business information- 

Please give us details about how people will contact you to book journeys, including 
the trading names of your business which you intend to advertise under, any 

telephone numbers used to receive bookings, the address(es) at which bookings 

are received, details of any public booking offices you provide, and details of your 

website and any booking apps you may use. The company trading name cannot 

feature the words ‘Taxi(s)’, ‘Cab(s)’, ‘Minicab(s)’ or any other word that may give 

the impression that vehicles are available for immediate hire. 

Section 7 Has the applicant or director/company officers ever been refused a Private Hire 

operators licence or had such a licence revoked? 

 

 

Page 12

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/private-hire-operator-application-guidance-notes


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

11.   Uber Britannia Limited has been invited to attend this Taxi Licensing Committee, in order that the 

matters contained within this report may be considered. The company has also been advised that 

should they fail to attend, then Members may resolve to hear and make a decision based solely on 

the content of the report in their absence. 

 

   Office of the Director of Public Health 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

Uber Britannia Ltd Application form 

 

Page 13



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

Page 17



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

Page 18



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Page 19



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

Page 20



 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

Taxi Licensing Committee
 

 

 

Date of meeting: 21 November 2024 

Title of Report: Application for the Grant of a Private Hire Vehicle Operator 

Licence 

Lead Member:   Councillor Sally Haydon (Cabinet Member for Community Safety, 

Libraries, Events, Cemeteries & Crematoria) 

Lead Strategic Director: Ruth Harrell (Director of Public Health) 

Author: Nicola Horne 

Contact Email:  nicola.horne@plymouth.gov.uk 

Your Reference: PHO2024/ TL/ NH/2 

Key Decision:  No 

Confidentiality: Part I - Official 

   

Purpose of Report 

For Members of the Committee to consider the application for the grant of a Private Hire Vehicle 

Operators licence made by Smartzi B2B Ltd T/A Smartzi having due regard for the information 

contained within the report, any representations made by the company and the Plymouth City Council 

Act 1975, (Plymouth City Council Act 1975 (legislation.gov.uk) ), and the Council’s Hackney Carriage 

and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2022 (as amended 2024). (Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 

Licensing Policy | PLYMOUTH.GOV.UK) 

 

 

Recommendations and Reasons 

That Members consider the report and representations to determine whether or not Smartzi B2B Ltd 

T/A Smartzi is a fit and proper person to be granted a Private Hire Vehicle Operator licence and if a 

licence is to be issued, to decide on the appropriate length of the licence and any reasonably necessary 

conditions. 
 

 

Alternative options considered and rejected 

None 

 

 

Relevance to the Corporate Plan and/or the Plymouth Plan   

Keeping children, adults and communities safe- by ensuring that we provide a safe taxi licensing system 

to the wider community of Plymouth.  

 

 

Implications for the Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     

None 

 

Financial Risks  

Page 21 Agenda Item 8

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukla/1975/20/enacted
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/hackney-carriage-and-private-hire-licensing-policy
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/hackney-carriage-and-private-hire-licensing-policy


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

None 

 

 

Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:  

Not applicable   

 

Other Implications: e.g. Health and Safety, Risk Management, Child Poverty: 
* When considering these proposals members have a responsibility to ensure they give due regard to the Council’s duty to promote 

equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and promote good relations between people who share protected 

characteristics under the Equalities Act and those who do not. 

Members should be aware that Section 17 of the Crime Disorder Act 1998 placed a statutory duty on 

every Local Authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the need to do all that it 

reasonably can do to prevent crime and disorder in its area. 

 

 

Appendices  
*Add rows as required to box below 
 

Ref. Title of Appendix Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable)  
If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate  

why it is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A  

of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.   

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

A Briefing report title        

 

Background papers:  

*Add rows as required to box below 

Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. Background papers are unpublished works, 

relied on to a material extent in preparing the report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

work is based. 

Title of any background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number (if applicable) 

If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it 

is not for publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A of the Local 

Government Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box.   

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

Smartzi B2B Ltd – Application form -  X – 

addres

s/ date 

of 

birth 

and 

tax 

code  

      

        

   

Sign off: 
 

Page 22



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

Fin 

 

HS.2
4.25.
24 

Leg IW – 

05.11.

24- 

3952 

Mon 

Off 

Click 

here 

to 

enter 

text. 

HR Click 

here 

to 

enter 

text. 

Asset

s  

Click 

here 

to 

enter 

text. 

Strat 

Proc 

Click here 

to enter 

text. 

Originating Senior Leadership Team member:  Ruth Harrell 

Please confirm the Strategic Director(s) has agreed the report?  Yes  

Date agreed: 05/11/2024 

 

Cabinet Member approval:  Councillor Sally Haydon approved by e-mail. 

Date approved: 05/11/2024 
 

 

 

 

 

Report 

 
FACTS 

 

1. Plymouth City Council is responsible for the issuing of Private Hire Vehicle Operators licences 

where they are satisfied that the applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a licence for a 

period of up to 5 years. (section 13 (1) and section 13 (2) respectively Plymouth City Council 

Act 1975).  The Council can attach conditions to the licence where it is considered reasonably 

necessary (section 13(3) Plymouth City Council Act 1975). 

 

2. The holder of a Private Hire Vehicle Operators licence is in effect, a contracting party with 

customers for the supply of a private hire vehicle and driver to undertake a journey, pre-

booked with that operator. The ‘Operator’ is responsible for, amongst other things, keeping 

accurate records of bookings received and the drivers and vehicles used to complete each 

booking, and ensuring that all conditions attached to the licence are complied with. (Chapter 4 

para 4.1 of the Hackney Carriage and private hire licensing policy | PLYMOUTH.GOV.UK) 

 

3. On 18 March 2024, Smartzi B2B Ltd T/A Smartzi made an application for the grant of a private hire 

vehicle operator licence for 5 years, with the intention of having one vehicle licenced per year. 

They have indicated they intend to recruit more drivers but will follow the application process for 

each driver to become licenced. (Appendix A) 

 

4. As part of the application process several procedural checks were carried out to enable a decision 

to be made about whether the applicant is a fit and proper person to hold a licence. These 

included:- 

 

a. a Basic Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) certificate was completed and checked for 

the two nominated Directors for the Plymouth operations, which revealed that there 

were no convictions. 

b. Companies House checked for Plymouth office. 

c. HMRC check. 

d. Applicants had lived in the UK for the last 10 years 
e. Both operators completed relevant Safeguarding courses on 18/06/24.  

 

5. All elements of the procedural and documentation check have been completed satisfactorily.  

Page 23

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/hackney-carriage-and-private-hire-licensing-policy


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

6. Smartzi B2B Ltd T/A Smartzi is a nationwide company and has outlined in its application form that 

no application has been refused or revoked nationally. 

 

DECISION TO BE MADE 

7. In light of the information contained within the application form and report, the committee is being 

asked to consider: 

a. whether the two named Directors of Smartzi B2B Ltd T/A Smartzi can each be 

considered a fit and proper person, and  
b. whether if Smartzi B2b Ltd licence is granted, the appropriate length of time the licence 

should be granted for, up to a maximum of 5 years and 

c. whether the Committee consider that any conditions should be imposed on the licence. 

 

CONSIDERATIONS 

 

8. Committee members must have regard to the Plymouth City Council Act 1975 and the Hackney 

Carriage and Private Hire Taxi Licensing Policy 2022 (as amended 2024), (referred to as the Policy) 

when deciding if the operator can be considered as a fit and proper person.  

 

9. Officers recognise that if this application is granted it will potentially financially affect other private 

hire operators in the city- the committee is reminded that this is not a factor to be considered 

when deciding the application. 

 

Fit and Proper person test 

 

10. The ‘fit and proper person’ test will be applied to each of the Directors or partners in that company 

or partnership. 

 

11. There is no statutory or judicial test whether an applicant is a fit and proper person to be granted 

a private hire operators licence. To assist the committee, James Button in “Button on Taxi’s” 

submits it is reasonable for this variation of the test recommended for assessing whether an 

operator is a fit and proper person: 

 

“Would I be comfortable providing sensitive information such as holiday or business plans, 

movements of my family or other personal information to this person and feel safe in the 

knowledge that such information would not be used or passed on for criminal or unacceptable 

purposes?” 

 

This is a decision for the committee after considering the report and any representation.  
 

12. There are several aspects to the policy that are pertinent to this application, based on the nature 

of the business model being app based. 

 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 

In Chapter 4 section 8.1, the policy states that ‘The Council will not grant a private hire operator’s licence 

to any person for an address OR base of operations that is located outside the Plymouth City Council 

area’.  

Smartzi B2B Ltd T/A Smartzi have stated in their application form that they have a local office 

situated within the boundary of Plymouth City Council. Bookings are received at an address in 

Surrey. The office is not a public office and will be used for meetings, driver onboarding and 

training but will not be open to the public. They can meet officers of the Council at this address 

for any pre-arranged meeting and the office could be manned if necessary. This address is listed 

Page 24

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/hackney-carriage-and-private-hire-licensing-policy#chapter-4-private-hire-operators


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

as The Apex, Derriford Business Park, Brest Road, Plymouth, Devon, PL6 5FL, United Kingdom, 

and has been confirmed on Companies House records.  

Smartzi B2B Ltd T/A Smartzi have confirmed that they have a team of staff to attend to 

complaints and requests for information from customers and any authorities. They offer a 24-

hour telephone hotline and e-mail response through the compliance team who will download any 

digital record and share with the taxi licensing authority. The current policy says in Chapter 4 

section 6.1 that electronic records are acceptable.  

In relation to a base of operations, Smartzi B2B Ltd T/A Smartzi have specified in their application 

that they will control bookings through their Surrey office, via a pre booked enquiry via 
telephone or a digital app and the booking office is not located within Plymouth. All drivers will 

be allocated their bookings through a purpose- built system via the Smartzi Driver App, where 

they have access to the jobs, contact number and any other related details and 

information. Therefore, they do not expect the drivers to work out of our offices. However, the 

policy only requires a local office OR base of operations, so this meets the requirements of 

policy. 

 

Conditions of Private Hire Operators 

The Policy outlines the conditions which should be incorporate into the licence. 

 

In relation to ‘Conditions of Licence for Private Hire Operators’, these standard conditions are 

applied to all operators. There are two conditions, that are important to consider. 

The operator must allow access to the premises at all reasonable times during business hours to any 

officer authorised by the Council or police officer, for the furtherance of his duties or for the purposes of 

inspection and/or enforcement. All such records as aforementioned must be made available for inspection 

without hindrance to the authorised officer or police officer upon demand. Para 6.4. 

In relation to the access to view records, Smartzi B2B Ltd T/A Smartzi B2B Ltd have confirmed 

that they have a team of staff to attend to complaints and requests for information from 

customers and any authorities. They offer a 24-hour telephone hotline and e-mail response 

through the compliance team who will download any digital record and share with the taxi 

licensing authority. The current policy says in section 6.1 that electronic records are acceptable.  
 

The operator will hold any property left within any hired licensed vehicle as provided by any licensed driver 

for safekeeping. A record of each item should record in writing, which should be available for inspection by 

any person authorised by the Council. The operator must have a documented disposal policy which must 

be approved by the Council. Para 6.6. 

 

Smartzi B2B Ltd T/A Smartzi have clarified by e-mail their compliance with the lost property 

requirements whereby in the first instance they encourage drivers to ask a passenger at the end of 

each journey if they have all belongings, and for the driver to check the vehicle also when the 
passenger leaves to make sure all belongings have been taken. If any item is left, this should be 

reported to the dispatcher at once. Arrangements will be made with the passenger to drop off the 

item free of charge when next in the vicinity, or the passenger can collect the item from the dispatch 

office, or if this is not suitable, a charge may be made for an alternative provision.  

 

Committee may want to consider any other conditions it may want to impose, should the 

Committee decide to grant an Operator’s licence.  

 

Licence Period 

 

Page 25

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/hackney-carriage-and-private-hire-licensing-policy#chapter-4-private-hire-operators
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/conditions-licence-private-hire-operator
https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/conditions-licence-private-hire-operator


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

The final point for consideration is the length of licence. The law states that a licence can be granted 

for up to 5 years maximum. Smartzi B2B Ltd T/A Smartzi have applied for a 5-year licence, however 

the licence may be granted for any period of between 1 year and 5 years. 

 

Under the Department for Transports Statutory taxi and private hire vehicle standards (updated 

November 2022) section 3.2, it states that:  

  

The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 (as amended) (LGMP 1976) sets a 

standard length at 3 years for taxi and private hire vehicle drivers and 5 years for private hire 
vehicle operators. 

 

“Any shorter duration licence should only be issued when the licensing authority thinks it is 

appropriate in the specific circumstances of the case. If a licensee has requested one or where 

required (for example, when the licence holder’s leave to remain in the UK is time-limited) or 

when the licence is only required to meet a short-term demand – they should not be issued on 

a probationary basis.” 

 

While Plymouth City Council licences Operators under the Plymouth City Council Act 1975, and 

not the LGMP 1976, the Department for Transport standards need to be considered and applied. 

The Department of Transport expects this recommendation to be implemented unless there is 

compelling local reasons not to. 

 

  

 

LAW AND POLICY 

 

13. The following law is relevant to the matters being considered in this report: 

Plymouth City Council Act 1975 Requirements 

Section 13(1)  
The Council shall not grant a licence to 

operate Private Hire vehicles to an applicant, 

unless they are satisfied that the applicant is a 

‘fit and proper’ person to hold such a licence. 

Section 13 (3) 
Provides for the Council to attach to the grant 

of such a licence such conditions as the Council 

may consider necessary. 

Section 14 
Every contract for the hire of a private hire 

vehicle shall be deemed to be made with the 

operator, and the operator shall keep records 

as specified by conditions 

Section 15 (1) 
The Council may require any applicant for a 

licence under the Act of 1847 or under this Act 

to submit to the Council such information as 

they may reasonably consider necessary to 

enable them to determine whether the licence 

should be granted and whether conditions 

should be attached to any such licence,  

 

Section 15(2)(b)(iii) 
The Council can require an applicant to 

submit information relating to (amongst 

other things) any trade or business activities 

he has carried on before making the 

Page 26

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards#private-hire-vehicle-operator-licensing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards#private-hire-vehicle-operator-licensing


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

application, to enable them to determine 

whether to grant a licence. 

 

 

 POLICY (relevant sections only) 

 

14. In reaching their decision, Members must have regard to the Council’s Hackney Carriage and 

Private Hire Licensing Policy 2022 (as amended 2024). The relevant parts of the Council’s policy 

are detailed/summarised below.  

 

Chapter 1 Statement of Policy  

3.1 The policy will provide a framework that will assist in delivering a safe, regulated 

hackney carriage and private hire licensed trade. The Council, in adopting this policy 

recognises both the needs of residents and visitors to expect a safe, healthy, 

convenient and effective hackney carriage and private hire transport service. 

3.2 The Council has adopted byelaws, conditions of licence and vehicle specifications 

and any other standards considered appropriate to regulate the hackney carriage 

and private hire trades for the benefit of all concerned within the City of Plymouth. 

3.3 The Council in its decision making will consider each case on its own merits, having 

regard to the requirements of this policy, any relevant specific policy documents, 

national best practice guidelines and any other information considered relevant 

4.6 In determining any matter in respect of a licence, the overriding principle adopted 

by the Council will be that each matter will be determined on its own merits. 

 

8.1 In exercising its discretion in carrying out its regulatory functions in respect to taxi 

licensing, the Council will have regard to its relevant policy documents. 

Notwithstanding the content of this policy, each matter will be considered on its 

own merits, but where there are clear and compelling reasons, the Taxi Licensing 

Committee may, having regard to all available information, authorise a departure 

from its policy documents. 

 

Chapter 4 Private Hire Operators 

1.1 Any person who operates a private hire service must apply to the Council for a    

private hire operator’s licence and comply with the Council’s conditions of licence. 

1.2 All applications for a grant or renewal of a private hire operator’s licence will be 

determined to ensure the applicant is ‘fit and proper’ to hold a licence and also 

having regard to any previous business activities performed by the applicant. The 

operator must declare all companies that operate under the umbrella of the 

operator’s licence as this information will be displayed on the licence. Where the 

applicant is a limited company, a named individual(s) must be stated for inclusion in 

the licence.  

 

1.4 Applications for an operator’s licence can be made as an individual, as a partnership 

of individuals, or as a limited company. All of the individuals/directors etc. involved 

in the company must be listed on the application form. The ‘fit and proper’ test will 

be applied to each of the directors or partners in that company or partnership. 

 

1.5 When determining an application or when reviewing a licence, the Council will 

apply the following test to ensure consistent and informed decisions are made: 

‘Would I be comfortable allowing this person to have control of a business that 

knows where any licensed vehicle is travelling, at any time of day or night and be 

satisfied that he/she would not allow the business to be used for criminal or other 

Page 27



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

unacceptable purposes and be confident that he/she would maintain their records 

to an acceptable standard throughout the period of the licence?’. 

 

1.6 The Council will issue a licence for a period of up to 5 years. 

4.1 The Council requires operators to keep records of each booking. Information must 

include:  

o Date and time when the booking was made  

o Name of the lead passenger  

o Pick up point and the time of the pick-up  

o Destination  

o Name of the driver, the licence number of the vehicle and route  

 

The records must be in an approved electronic format unless otherwise agreed by 

the Council. Factors to be considered in deciding whether an operator does not 

have to comply with this requirement are size of business, number of vehicles 

operated, compliance and cost effectiveness.  

 

4.2 The operator must hold records of insurance and licence expiry dates of drivers 

and vehicles. No journeys must be allocated to uninsured or unlicensed drivers and 

vehicles.  

 

5.1 Before an application for, or renewal of, a private hire operator’s licence is granted, 

the applicant must produce evidence that they have the appropriate public liability 

insurance. The Council’s standard level of expected cover is £5M. Where 

necessary, evidence of suitable employer liability insurance will be required.  

 

5.2 All operators must have suitable insurance in place indemnifying the operator 

against any third-party claim made against the operator arising as a result of the use 

of a vehicle operated by virtue of their operator’s licence. 

8.1 Operators Offices Located Outside the Plymouth Licensing Area  

The Council will not grant a private hire operator’s licence to any person for an 

address or base of operations that is located outside the Plymouth City Council 

area. 

 

 

OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION 

         

10.  The Taxi Licensing Section also provides ‘Application Guidance Notes’ for those seeking to be 
licensed as Private Hire Vehicle Operators, and the relevant areas of that guidance are provided below. 

Private Hire Operator - Application guidance notes | PLYMOUTH.GOV.UK The section numbers 

relate to the relevant section of the application form – a copy of which is produced at Appendix A: 

 Application Guidance Notes 

Section 2 Operating business information- 

Please give us details about how people will contact you to book journeys, including 

the trading names of your business which you intend to advertise under, any 

telephone numbers used to receive bookings, the address(es) at which bookings 

are received, details of any public booking offices you provide, and details of your 

website and any booking apps you may use. The company trading name cannot 
feature the words ‘Taxi(s)’, ‘Cab(s)’, ‘Minicab(s)’ or any other word that may give 

the impression that vehicles are available for immediate hire. 

Page 28

https://www.plymouth.gov.uk/private-hire-operator-application-guidance-notes


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

Section 7 Has the applicant or director/company officers ever been refused a Private Hire 

operators licence or had such a licence revoked? 

 

 

11.   Smartzi B2B Ltd T/A Smartzi has been invited to attend this Taxi Licensing Committee, in order that 

the matters contained within this report may be considered. The company has also been advised 

that should they fail to attend, then Members may resolve to hear and make a decision based solely 

on the content of the report in their absence. 

 

   Office of the Director of Public Health 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

Appendix A 

Smartzi B2B Ltd T/A Smartzi Application form 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 32



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



Document is Restricted

Page 35 Agenda Item 10
The following relates to exempt or confidential matters (Para(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Local Govt Act 1972). Any 
breach of confidentiality could prejudice the Council/person/body concerned & might amount to a breach of the councillors
/employees codes of conduct.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 43 Agenda Item 11
The following relates to exempt or confidential matters (Para(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Local Govt Act 1972). Any 
breach of confidentiality could prejudice the Council/person/body concerned & might amount to a breach of the councillors
/employees codes of conduct.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65 Agenda Item 12
The following relates to exempt or confidential matters (Para(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Local Govt Act 1972). Any 
breach of confidentiality could prejudice the Council/person/body concerned & might amount to a breach of the councillors
/employees codes of conduct.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79 Agenda Item 13
The following relates to exempt or confidential matters (Para(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Local Govt Act 1972). Any 
breach of confidentiality could prejudice the Council/person/body concerned & might amount to a breach of the councillors
/employees codes of conduct.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Application for the Grant of a Private Hire Vehicle Operator Licence
	8 Application for the Grant of a Private Hire Vehicle Operator Licence
	10 Confidential Minutes
	11 Review Status of a Private Hire Vehicle Driver Licence, Private Hire Vehicle Licence and Operators Licence
	12 Review Status of a Hackney Carriage Vehicle Driver Licence
	13 Review status of Hackney Carriage Driver and Vehicle Licence

